LAWS OF SOUTH SUDAN
POLITICAL PARTIES COUNCIL ACT, 2012 (AMENDED)
POLITICAL PARTIES COUNCIL REGULATIONS, 2015 (AMENDMENT)
REGULATIONS, 2024

**IN EXERCISE** of the powers conferred by Article 197A of the Transitional Constitution 2011 (as amended) to together with Sections 12 (4) and 31 of the Political Parties Act, 2012, the Political Parties Council makes the following Amendment Regulations

### **CHAPTER I**

### PRELIMINARY PROVISIONS

1. The Regulations is amended by adding to the title the phrase "(Amendment) Regulations, 2024" after the word "2015" to read as follows:

### 1. Title and Commencement.

These Regulations shall be cited as the "Political Parties Council Regulations, 2015 (Amendment) Regulations, 2024' and shall come into force on the date of its signature by the Chairperson of the Council.

2. Regulation 3 of the Regulations, 2015 is amended by phrasing, restructuring and renumbering the Regulation to read as follows:

## 2. Purpose

The purpose of these Regulations is to establish a framework to provide for procedures for regulation of political parties and operations of the Council.

3. Regulation 4 of the Regulations, 2015 is amended by adding, deleting, restructuring and adding new interpretations to read as follows:

### 3. Interpretations

"Special Interest Groups" means groups of persons facing unique circumstances that might impact them negatively and includes women, youth, and persons with special needs.

# CHAPTER II POLITICAL PARTIES COUNCIL

4. Regulation 5 of the Regulations, 2015 is amended by adding a new Regulation 5A immediately after Regulation 5 and renumbering the Regulation to read as follows:

# 4. 5A Establishing of the Council

The Political Parties Council established under the Act shall be responsible for the registration, supervision and regulation of political parties as governed under these regulations

5. The Regulation 6 of the Regulations, 2015 is amended by deleting, substituting and renumbering the Regulation to read as follows:

### 5. Conduct of the Business Affairs of the Council.

- (1) The Council shall meet at least once every calendar month for the carrying out of its business and as often as may necessary during an election period.
- (2) A meeting of the Council shall be held on such date and such time as the Chairperson shall decide. At least seven (7) days written notice of every meeting of the Council shall be given to every member of the Council.
- (3) The Chairperson shall preside at every meeting of the Council at which he or she is present and in the absence of the Chairperson, the Deputy Chairperson shall preside and in the absence of both at a meeting, the members present shall elect one of their member who shall chair that meeting.
- (4) The Secretary General shall be the secretary at all meetings of the Council and shall be the custodian of all records and minutes.
- (5) The Council shall cause minutes of all its meetings to be entered into books for that purpose. A disclosure of interest shall be recorded in minutes of the meeting, when made.
- (6) Except as provided otherwise, the Council shall regulate its own procedure.
- (7) The Council may establish committees of its members for various purposes in the better carrying out of its business.
- (8) A member or employee of the Council shall not transact any business or trade with the Council
- 6. -Regulation 7 of the Regulations, 2015 is amended by deleting, substituting and restructuring sub-regulations (8 and (9) to read as follows:

### 6. Meeting of the Council

- (8) Decision-making by the Council shall be by simple majority and in the event of a tie, the Chairperson shall have a casting vote'
- (9) The quorum for meetings and resolutions of the Council shall be five (5) of

its members and decision-making shall be by simple majority and in the event of a tie, the Chairperson shall have a casting vote.'

7. Regulation 9 of the Regulations, 2015 is amended by deleting sub-regulation (1) and sub-divide, sub-Regulation (2) and renumbering Regulation and sub-regulation (2) accordingly to read as follows:

## 7. General Conduct of Meeting

- (2) No proceedings of the Council shall be invalid by reason only of a vacancy among the members thereof.
- (3) If any member is present at a meeting of the Council at which any matter is subject of consideration in which that member has a direct or indirect interest in their private capacity, that member shall as soon as possible after commencement of the meeting, declare such interest, which shall be recorded, and shall not, unless the Council otherwise directs, take part in the proceedings on that matter.

### CHAPTER III POLITCAL PARTIES

- 8. Regulations 11, 12 and 13 are repealed.
- 9. The Regulations is amended by adding new Regulations to read as follows:

### 8. Membership of Political Party

- (1) Membership of political parties shall be as governed by the provisions of the Act.
- (2) A political party may identify qualified recruiting persons and furnish them with party membership verification for in **Form P10** for purposes of recruiting members in any part of the country.
- (3) Each political party shall issue a party membership card to each of its members as evidence of membership. The membership card issued under sub (2) shall be in **Form P11** set out in the First Schedule.
- (4) Every person who intends to join a political party as a member shall complete a Party Membership Verification Form and sign a declaration in the form declaring that the person is not a registered member of another political party.
- (5) Subject to the Act, these regulations and any other law on recruitment members of political party, a political party may regulate its own procedure for recruiting members.
- (6) A political party shall start recruiting members upon provisional registration and prepare a register of its members in **Form P6.**
- (7) A political party shall charge such subscription and membership fees as determined by its constitution.
- (8) A member of a political party cease to be a member if-

- (a)the member resigns or is deemed to have resigned from the political party in accordance with Section 14 of the Act;
- (b) the member is expelled from the party in accordance with provisions of the Act;
- (c)In the case of a political party that has been provisionally registered, fails to apply for full registration one hundred and eighty days after that registration;
- (d)the political party is deregistered in accordance with Section 34 of the Act;
- (e)the political party is declared as a prohibited organization under any law; or
- (f)the political party is wound up and dissolve.
- (9) A political party shall ensure the composition of a governing body from its recruited members, which body must reflect regional and ethnic diversity, gender balance and representation of special interest groups to be demonstrated in **Form P8.**
- (10) For purposes of these Regulations, a member of a political party may be deemed to have resigned in the following circumstances—
  - (a) by a resolution of a national executive committee constituted for that purpose basing its action on a pre-determined criteria and contained in its constitution or rules and procedure for deeming a member to have resigned;
  - (b) by the Council based on a reasonably justifiable complaint to the Council from any person, after following due process

# 9. Name of Political Party

- (1)No prospective party shall submit to the Council for purpose of registration under the Act, any name, abbreviations or initials which are the same as the name, initials or abbreviations of any other registered political party or of the republic of South Sudan' as it may likely deceive or confuse persons.
- (2)No name, abbreviations or initial shall be reserved and no prospective political party shall be registered by the name, abbreviations or initials, which on the opinion of the council, is undesirable, obscene or offensive.
- (3)The Council may on written application, received and approved by the Council, reserve any name, logo, emblem, symbol of a political party pending registration of a political party or change of name of a political party. Such reservation shall remain in force for a period of thirty (30) days or such period not exceeding sixty (60) days as the Council may for special reason allow and during which period no political party will be allowed to register with that name.

### 10. Branches of Political Parties

- (1)Every registered political party shall establish branch offices which shall be located in two-thirds of the states and administrative Areas and shall be open each official working day and accessible to the public.
- (2)A political party office shall be a public office open for inspection and shall not be located in a person's residential home.
- (3)Each political party branch shall keep copies of all documents required under Section 21 of the Act in all its branch offices and make them available for inspection.

(4) The political party shall notify the Council in the event of closure of the branch office or if it has ceased to function, within thrifty (30) days in Form P12 specified in the First Schedule.

# CHAPTER IV REGISTRATION OF POLITICAL PARTIES

- 10. Regulations 14, 15, 16, 17 and 18 are repealed.
- 11. The Regulations is amended by adding new Regulations to read as follows:

### 11 Application for Provisional Registration

- (1)An application for provisional registration of a proposed political shall be in duplicate in **Form P1** signed by three authorized party officials of the proposed political party who are identified in the party constitution and shall be submitted to the Council together with a declaration in **Form P3** together with:
  - a) two copies of the constitution of the proposed political party which shall comply with the provisions of section 21 of the Act;
  - **b)**a request for the registration of the logo, symbol and party colours of the political party;
  - c) undertaking to be bound by the Constitution and the Act
  - d)minutes of the first meeting of the founding members signed by all persons present in that meeting; and
  - e) such other particulars as the Council may from time to time determine.
- (2) For purposes of sub-regulation (1) (c), a request for the registration of party colors shall:
  - (a) specify a combination of colours;
  - (b) identify the printing code of each colour;
- (3)Upon registration of the logo and symbol of a political party under subregulation (1) (b) a party may print or display such logo and symbol in either colour or in a combination of colours.
- (4) The Council shall, on receipt of an application under paragraph (1), scrutinise it as per the checklist provided in Form P2, and if satisfied that the conditions prescribed for provisional registration have been fulfilled, within thirty days of such receipt, and upon payment by the applicant of fee specified in the schedule, issue a certificate of provisional registration.

(5) The certificate of provisional registration of a political party shall be in Form P4 and shall be the permit to enable the political party carry out its activities but shall not participate in any election activities until it has attained full registration.

### 12. Application for Full Registration

- (1)An application for full registration of a political party shall be in duplicate in **Form P5** signed by three authorized party officials who are identified in the party constitution and shall be submitted to the Council together with a declaration in **Form P7**.
- (2) The Council shall, on receipt of an application under paragraph (1), scrutinize it, and if satisfied that the conditions prescribed for full registration have been fulfilled, issue a certificate of full registration on payment by the applicant of the specified fees within three days.
- (3) The certificate of full registration of a political party shall be in Form P9.
- (4)Upon an application for full registration of a political party, the applicants shall surrender the provisional certificate of registration to the Council.
- (5)If for any reason the certificate of provisional registration cannot be surrendered and required under sub-paragraph (4), the applicants shall submit an affidavit and a police abstract explaining the circumstances of its unavailability and the Council shall, if satisfied by the reasons, file the documents and cancel the provisional certificate.

### 13. Contents of Application for Registration

- (1) The application for full registration of political party shall, be submitted to the Council and shall contain the name of party and particulars of founders.
- (2) The application for full registration shall be accompanied with three copies each of the Constitution of the party including the basic rules, regulations and emblem of the political party.
- (3) The Council shall, provide the applicant with acknowledgement of receipt of application and attached documents.
- (4) The Council shall, open a register for depositing of the registration application and documents referred to under sub-regulation (2) of this Regulation.
- (5) The applicant for full registration of Political Party shall, undertake all necessary steps for full registration within a maximum of one hundred and eighty days (180) days from the certification for provisional registration.

### 14.Examination of Registered Applications

(1) The Council shall, upon receipt of the application, names of founders and documents, conduct preliminary examination to confirm its compatibility with

- the Act and Regulations.
- (2) The Council shall, conduct examination of application for full registration and submitted documents from political parties with the objective of confirming its satisfaction of provisions of the Act. In which respect the Council may:
  - (a)receive upon oath an oral statement;
  - (b)conduct field visits for inspection of premises and its suitability for the political party; and
  - (c) request any information, particulars or documents from any official or private body.

# 15. Publication of Full Registration

- (1) The Council shall publish summary of the application for full registration in the official gazette and at least two daily newspapers of wide circulation of political parties intending to be registered.
- (2) The publication shall, contain name, emblem and names of founders of the political party and summary of its objectives, means of achievement and period within which an objection against registration may be lodged.

### 16. Notice of Change of Office Bearers

- (1) Where a political leader of any registered political party ceases to hold office and another person is elected to that office, the political party shall within period of fourteen (14) days of the appointment, send notice thereof to the Council, which shall be signed by three authorized officials.
- (2)A notice under Sub-regulation (1) shall be in duplicate in **FormP13** set out in the First schedule to these regulations.

# 17. Notification of Change of Location of Head Office or Postal Address

- (1) If a registered political party changed the location of its head office or branch or the postal address, or telephone numbers, the political party shall, within fourteen (14) days of such change, send notice thereof to the Council.
- (2) A notice of change of location, address or telephone shall, be in duplicate in Form P14 set out in the First Schedule to the Regulations.

# 18. Change of Name of Political Party

- (1) The Council may, upon receiving a notice using **Form P15** reserve a name, slogan, logo, colour or symbol, pending change of name by a political party.
- (2) The Notice shall be accompanied by copy of minutes, signed by three authorized officials of the political party, at which the resolution to effect the change was passed.
- (3) Where the name of any registered political party is changed, the council shall issue a new certificate of registration, upon the original certificate being surrendered to the Council, unless its absence is accounted for to the

- satisfaction of the Council by way of an affidavit and a police abstract.
- (4) The Council may refuse to register a notification under sub regulation (i) if the name of the political party, the abbreviation of the name or the symbol that it wishes to use for purposes of the Act:
  - (a) is obscene or offensive;
  - **(b)** is the name, or is an abbreviation of another political party that is registered under the Act; or
  - (c) so nearly resembles the name or symbol, or an abbreviation of the name of another political party registered under the Act or any other legal entity registered under any other written law.

### 19. Chang of Constitution, Rules and Particulars of Political Party

- (1)Any political party that intends to change its constitution or rules and regulations shall, notify the Council using **Form P16** set out in the First Schedule to the Regulations
- (2) The Notice shall be accompanied by a copy of the minutes signed by three political leaders of the political party, at which the resolution to effect rah change was passed.
- (3) The Council shall, prior to refusing to effect a change under this regulation, notify the intention and reasons to the political party concerned and shall give the political party an opportunity to submit reasons, if any, why the application should not be refused.

### 20. Approval of Change

A notification to the Council under regulations 19, 20 and 21 shall be accompanied by a copy of the minutes of the meeting at which the resolution to effect the change was passed, certified as a true copy and signed by three authorized officials of the political party who are identified in the party constitution in accordance to the Act.

### 21. Register of Political Parties

- (1) The Council shall keep the register of all registered Political Parties.
- (2) The Register of political parties shall be accompanied by:
  - (a) duplicate copy of the registration certificate; of the political part
  - **(b)** duplicate copy of the Constitution, Rules and Regulations of the Political Party
  - (c)status report of the political party registration indicating whether the party is active or suspended or any other particulars;
  - (d)accurate and updated list of branches of the political party;
  - (e))accurate and updated list of party leaders and party officials including their full names, addresses, telephone numbers and email addresses.

- **(f)**accurate and updated list of party members as at the date specified by the Council; and
- (g) any other particulars which the Council may from time to time determine.
- (3) The Council shall maintain one register for the registered political parties that include name of each political party, its emblem, date, serial number of registration and basic particulars as listed under sub (2).
- (4) The Council shall maintain a specific register for each political party in which copy each of the approved documents and approved file of accounts related therewith may be kept, by using Form P17 in the First Schedule to the Regulations.
- (5) The Council shall record in the register all changes of the name, abbreviated name, distinguishing mark and symbol of the political party and any change of status indicating whether a political party is suspended or deregistered.
- 12. The Regulations is amended by adding new Regulations to read as follows:

### 22. Returns and Reports

- (1) Within a period of three months after the end of each financial year, a fully registered political party shall submit to the Council:
- (a) (i)financial accounts in such form as the Council may from time to time determine:
- (b) (ii)an annual activity report containing a summary of activities undertaken by the party in the year approved by the party governing body; and
- (c) (iii)policy reporting documents as governed by the Act.
- (2) The Council may, at any time, require a party to submit a return in **Form P18** or a report relating to the constitution, objects, office-bearers and membership of the party.
- (3)Every office-bearer and every person managing or assisting in the management of a political party shall comply with any requirements of this regulation.

### 23. Notices

- (1) Every notice, application, statement or other document required under the Act or these Regulations to be furnished or sent to the Council shall be signed by three authorized party officials who are identified in the party constitution.
- (2) Any notice which the Council is required under the Regulations to give to any political party shall be deemed to have been given to the party if sent by registered post addressed to the party at its registered physical, postal or email address.

### 24. Notification of the De-registration of a Political Party

- (1) If the Council intends to deregister a political party under section 31 of the Act, the Council shall notify the party using **Form P20.**
- (2) The Council shall, upon de-registration of a political party or upon its declaration as a prohibited organization under any law issue a notice to that effect.

### 25. Notification of Suspension of a Political Party

- (1) If the Council intends to suspend a political party under section 31 of the Act, the Council shall notify the party using **Form P19.**
- (2) A political party that is dissatisfied by the decision of the Council to deregister or suspend the party may appeal to the Court against the decision of the Council
- 13. Regulation 32 of Regulations, 2015 is repealed;
- 14. Regulation 30 of Regulations, 2015 is amended by deleting, adding, substituting and renumbering the Regulation to read as follows:

### 26. Decision of the Council on Registration Application

The Council shall, where no objection against the registration application of political party is submitted or was submitted and was rejected or accepted in form, conduct a study on the registration application to confirm to its satisfaction the requirements of Sections 6,7 and 21 of the Act and shall issue the appropriate decisions as the case may be as follows:

- (a) registration of the political party, its addition on the register and issuance of certificate in that respect;
- (b) grant the political party a period of fifteen (15) days to complete the required missing data; or
- (c) notification in writing, of the political party for non-registration and reasons for the rejection.
- 15. Regulation 31 of Regulations, 2015 is amended by deleting, adding, substituting and renumbering the Regulation to read as follows:

### 27. Publication of Decision

The decision of the Council shall, for acceptance or rejection of the registration application, be published in at least two daily newspapers of wide circulation, while the certificate of registration and its number shall be published in the official gazette.

16. Regulation 33 of Regulations, 2015 is amended by adding, substituting and renumbering the Regulation to read as follows:

### 28. Perusal of Political Party Registers

The Chairperson shall, permit any citizen upon application with stated reasons, the perusal of register of the political party and its basic documents with the Council, during official working hours, upon such guidelines and after payment of prescribed fee.

17. Regulation 34 of Regulations, 2015 is repealed.

# CHAPTER VII POLITICAL PARTY MERGERS

- 18. Regulation 39 of Regulations, 2015 is repealed.
- 19. The Regulations, 2015 is amended by adding two new Regulations before Regulation 40 to read as follows:

### 29. Formation of Mergers

- (1)A member of a political party may, subject to the rules and regulations of the party:
  - (a) advocate for the merger of their political party with another party;
  - (b)join in the formation of a merger
- (2)Registered political parties intending to merge shall submit to the Council the following documents:
  - (a)application for merger;
  - (b)merger agreement;
  - (c)resolution of new rules and procedures of the political parties merging having been complied with; and
  - (d)Minutes of meetings of the governing bodies of each of the political parties authorizing the merger.

### 30. Merger Agreements

- (1) A merger agreement shall set out the matters specified in Form P21.
- (2)Political parties entering into a merger by integrating or being integrated into another party shall deposit the merger agreement with the Council using Form P22A; P22B.
- (3)A merger agreement shall adhere to the rules and procedures of the political parties relating to mergers.
- (4)A merger agreement shall be sanctioned by the relevant governing body of the political parties entering into the merger and shall:
  - (a)be in writing and duly executed and signed by the authorized party officials;
  - (b)be commissioned by a Commissioner of Oaths
- (5)A merger agreement shall state:
  - (a) The purpose of the merger;

- (b) The parties that are entering into the merger;
- (c)Whether the merger will be forming:
  - (i)a new party or;
  - (ii)the merger is by integrating one or more parties into an already existing (integrating) political party
- (d)The dates which each party took the resolution to enter into the merger.
- (e)The governing body/bodies in each party which took the resolution to enter into the merger
- (6) The merger agreement shall further state the transitional provisions including:
  - (a)Transition structure;
  - (b)Transitional officials in change of the merger process;
  - (c)Transitional rules and/or procedures;
  - (d)Provisions for ending of the transitional period;
  - (e)Provisions for assets and liabilities; financial assets, allocations from the Party Fund and employees of any of the parties being dissolved.
- 20. Regulation 40 of Regulations, 2015 is amended by deleting, substituting, restructuring and renumbering to read as follows:

## 31. Scrutiny and approval of Merger by the Council

- (1)Upon receiving the merger agreement, the Council shall scrutinize the documents deposited within fourteen (14) days.
- (2)If the Council is satisfied that the merger agreement is in accordance with the Act and each constituent party consenting to merger has fully complied with the relevant provisions of the Act and their party constitutions, rules and regulations, the Council shall issue a letter of confirmation of the merger.
- (3) Where the Council is not satisfied that, the merger agreement is in compliance as per sub (2) above, the Council shall request for additional information to be furnished within a period of thirty (30) days.
- (4) The Council shall, after issuing the letter of confirmation of the merger publish a notice in the official gazette and in at least two newspapers with wide national circulation specifying:
  - (a)names of the merging parties; and
  - (b)name of the merged political party
- 21. Regulations, 2015 is amended by adding a new Regulation immediately after Regulation 40 to read as follows:

## 32. Certificate of Registration of Merged Party

- (1)When two or more political parties merge into a new party—the new party shall not be required to be provisionally registered the Council shall register the new party following the provisions of full registration and issue a certificate of full registration together with a letter of confirmation of the merger.
- (2) When a new political party referred to in sub-regulation (1) is registered in accordance with the Act and these regulations, the constituent integrated political parties shall be dissolved on the day of the registration of the new party, and their particulars be removed from the register of political parties.
- (3)When constituent political parties in a merger of political parties are dissolved, the party names, symbols, logos and colours of the dissolved parties shall not be registered in favor of any party for a period of five year.
- 22. The Regulations, 2015 is amended by adding a new Chapter immediately after Chapter VII and renumbering the subsequent Chapters to read as follows:

# CHAPTER VIII COALITIONS

#### 33. Formation of Coalitions

- (1)Political parties which have agreed to form a coalition shall deposit the coalition agreement with the Council using Form P23 and signed by the authorized national party officials.
- (2) There shall be attached to Form P23:
  - (a)the coalition agreement;
  - (b) the procedures for amending the coalition agreement;
  - (c)documentation that the rules and procedures of the individual political parties relating to the formation of the coalition have been followed; and
  - (d)minutes from the sanctioning of each of the governing bodies of each of the parties entering in to the coalition.
- (3) Upon receiving the Form P23 and the attachments required in accordance with sub-regulation (1), the Council shall scrutinize the documents deposited within five (5) days.
- (4)If the Council is satisfied that the coalition agreement is in accordance with the Third Schedule of the Act and each constituent party consenting to coalition has fully complied with the relevant provisions of the Act or any other law, the Council shall issue a letter of approval.
- (5)Upon issuing the letter of approval of the coalition, the Council shall publicize in at least two national newspapers that the coalition agreement is received and spell out the name of the coalition and the member parties of the coalition.
- (6) In the event the Council is not satisfied that the coalition agreement is in accordance with sub-regulation (1), the Council shall request for additional

information to be deposited within ten days.

(7)In the event, and after requesting twice additional information, the Council is not satisfied that the coalition agreement is not in accordance with sub-regulation (1), the Council shall not approve the coalition agreement and shall inform the member parties of the coalition within two (2) days.

### 34. Pre-Election Coalitions

In the case of a pre-election coalition, the coalition agreement must be deposited in **Form P24** with the Council latest three months before the election and must be approved by the Council latest two months before the election

### 35. Post-Election Coalition

In the case of a post-election coalition, the coalition agreement must be deposited in **Form P25** with the Council within twenty-one (21) days of signing of the agreement

### **36. Coalition Agreement**

- (1)A coalition agreement shall adhere to the rules and procedures of the political parties relating to the formation of the coalitions.
- (2)A coalition agreement shall be sanctioned by the governing bodies of the political parties entering into the coalition and shall:
  - (a)be in writing and duly executed by the authorized officials of the parties entering into the coalition;
  - **(b)**be commissioned by a Commissioner of Oaths.
- (3)A Coalition Agreement shall state the:
  - (a)political parties which are members of the coalition;
  - (b)policies and objectives of the coalition;
  - (c)overall structure of the coalition;
  - (d)management of the coalition including the state structures and systems and state governing bodies;
  - (e)role of governing body and political party organs of the individual member parties of the coalition in the running of the affairs of the coalition:
  - (f)criteria or formula of sharing positions in the coalition structure;
  - (g)roles and responsibilities within the coalition;
  - (h)coalition nomination rules;
  - (i)coalition election rules;
  - (j)decision-making structure, rules and procedures;
  - (k)process and mechanisms by which the coalition agreement is to be amended;

- (l)code of conduct of the coalition including values and principles guiding the performance of the individuals and members of the parties within the coalition:
- (m)dispute resolution mechanisms and procedures;
- (n)enforcement and sanction mechanisms and procedures for breach of any of the provisions of the agreement;
- (o)formula and the mechanisms for sharing of funds from the Political Party Fund to the respective member of the coalition;
- (p)grounds upon which the coalition may be dissolved including the mechanisms and procedures to be followed.

# 37. Amendment of Coalition Agreements

- (1)Political parties that have formed a coalition and deposited the coalition agreement with the Council may amend the coalition agreement in accordance with the procedures for amending the coalition agreement outlined in the original agreement.
- (2)An amended coalition agreement shall comply with the provisions in the Act and any other law and shall be signed by the authorized officials in accordance with the provisions for coalition amendments outlined in the original agreement.
- (3)Depositing an amended coalition agreement shall follow the procedures of depositing a coalition agreement.

### 38. Nomination of candidates by constituent political parties in a Coalition

- (1)All candidates presented in an election by a party which is a member of a preelection coalition shall be nominated on the political party ticket with the party logo of the respective constituent parties in accordance with the coalition agreement.
- (2) For the avoidance of doubt a coalition:
  - (a)shall not register a coalition name, but may use such name in popularizing the coalition;
  - (b)may have a coalition slogan, logo and colours;
  - (c)may use the logo, symbol and colours of its constituent political parties;
  - (d)may agree to distribute funds allocated to individual political parties under the Fund:
  - (e)may only admit as its members registered political parties; shall not recruit individual members except through its constituent political parties; and
  - (f)where a candidate is nominated on a coalition ticket, the coalition must provide rules to govern the responsibility of each constituent political party.

### 39. Withdrawn from a Coalition

- (1)A political party intending to withdraw from a coalition shall pass a resolution following the procedures spelt out in the coalition agreement.
- (2) The decision by a party to withdraw from the coalition shall be submitted in writing to the Council within two weeks after the decision of the party governing body and signed by the authorized national party officials.
- (3)The Council shall publicize the withdrawal of a party from a coalition by publishing the name and date of withdrawal in two newspapers with national circulation.
- (4)If, as a result of withdrawal, a coalition consists of only one party, the Registrar shall consider the coalition dissolved, and shall publicize the dissolution in at least two newspapers with national circulation.

### 40. Dissolution of a Coalition

- (1)If a coalition is otherwise dissolved in accordance with the coalition agreement the decision to dissolve shall be reduced into writing and:
  - (a) signed by the authorized officials; and
  - (b) submitted to the Registrar within two weeks after the date of the decision.
- (2)If a coalition is dissolved in accordance with sub-regulation (1), the Council shall publicize the dissolution in at least two newspapers of wide circulation.

# CHAPTER IX FINANCE, ACCOUNT AND AUDIT

23. Regulation 42 of the Regulations, 2015 is amended by deleting, substituting, restructuring and renumbering the Regulation to read as follows:

### **41.Accounts of Political Parties**

- (1)Every political party shall keep and maintain such books of accounts of funds, assets and liabilities of the political party.
- (2) Every political party fully registered shall, maintain a bank account in which all the funds received by the party, in accordance with Section 21 of the Act shall be deposited.
- 24. The Regulations 2015 is amended by adding a new Regulation to read as follows:

### 42. Auditing of Reports and Accounts of Political Parties

- (1)Every political party shall, within three months after the end of each financial year submit to the Auditor General, the accounts of the political party in respect of that year.
- (2) The audited accounts of every political party shall be submitted to the Council within six months after the end of each financial and the Council shall publish an annual report on the audited accounts in the official gazette.
- (3) Notwithstanding sub-regulation (1) above, the Council may at any time request the Auditor General to audit the accounts of a political party.
- (4)Any person shall be entitled to inspect the audited accounts filed by a political party and, upon payment of a fee prescribed by the Council, be issued with copies of the audited accounts.
- 25. Regulation 43 is repealed
- 26. Regulation 44 is repealed
- 27. Regulation 45 is amended by deleting, adding, substituting and renumbering to read as follows:

### 43. Declaration of Assets, Liabilities and Expenditure of Political Parties

- (1)A political party shall, at least sixty days before a general election, submit to the Council, a register of its members and a statement of its assets and liabilities in the prescribed form.
- (2)Every political party shall produce financial statement showing income and expenditures including assets and liabilities of the political party at least once in every year at such time as may be specified in the constitution or rules of the political party.
- (3)A political party that submits a statement that is false in any material particulars commits an offence and shall be liable to penalties in accordance to the Act.
- (4)The Council may, after inspecting any accounts or report submitted pursuant to this regulation, for the benefit of members or the public, publish any matter in relation to the funds, resources or property of any political party or use funds, assets and liabilities
- 28. Chapter IX of Regulations 2015 is repealed
- 29. The title of Chapter X of the Regulations, 2015 is amended by substituting it to read as follows:

# 44. Constituent Meeting and General Convention."

30. The title of Regulation 52 is amended by replacing the word "Conference" with the word "Convention" after the word "General" and throughout this Regulation to read as follows

### 45. General Convention

31. The title of Regulation 53 is amended by replacing the word "Conference" with the word "Convention" after the word "General" and throughout this Regulation to read as follows:

### 46. Procedures of Convening of Constituent Meeting and General Convention

# CHAPTER X MISMISCELLIOUS PROVISIONS

### 47. Working Environment

The Council shall ensure conducive work environment to all officials' staff of the secretariat so as it may improve work performance efficiency and effectiveness.

### 48. Training

The officials and staff shall be entitled for professional training annually.

#### 49. Rules and Orders

The Council may issue rules and orders, for the efficient and effective implementation of these Regulations.

### 50. Schedules

# **FIRST SCHEDULE**

FORM P.1 (r. 11)

# APPLICATION FOR PROVISIONAL REGISTRATION OF A POLITICAL PARTY

Application is hereby made for provisional registration of
(Name of political party) (Hereinafter called "the party") under the Political Parties Act, 2012.
1. The principal office of the party is situated at
2. The postal address of the party is
3. The titles, names and postal addresses of the proposed office bearers
4. The abbreviation of the proposed party is
<ul><li>5. We annex hereto marked "A" two true copies of the constitution and or rules of the party and</li></ul>

the proposed emblem. Provision has been made in constitution or rules of the political party for

the following matters in accordance with Section 9 of the Act.

# CHECK LIST OF LIST OF DOCUMENTS TO BE DELIVERED WITH APPLICATION FOR PROVISIONAL REGISTRATION OF POLITICAL PARTY

No.	Information	Remarks Yes/No	Reference/Page No.
1.	The name of the party and any abbreviation (if used).		
2	The logo and symbol of the political party and party colours		
3.	The physical and postal address of the registered office of the party.		
4	<ul> <li>Whether party has submitted the following documents:</li> <li>2 copies of the Constitution of the party</li> <li>Request for registration of logo, symbol and party colours</li> <li>Minutes of first meeting of founding members signed by all persons present at the meeting.</li> <li>Undertaking to be bound by the Constitution and the Act.</li> </ul>		
5	Bankers Cheque/Draft on account of registration fee drawn in favour of the Political Parties Council enclosed.		
6	List of Five hundred eligible voters from at least two-thirds of the states and administrative Areas;		

No.	Information	Remarks Yes/No	Reference/Page No.
7	Duly sworn affidavit affirming that no member of the party is a member of any other political party already registered with the Council and hat members were recruited using established procedures.		
8	Proof that members reflect regional and ethnic diversity, gender balance and representation of special interest groups.		
9.	A list of members of the governing body and proof that:  i. Body reflects regional, ethnic diversity, gender balance and representation of special interest groups.  ii. Body has at least one member from each state.  iii. Members meet the ethical requirements as governed by the Constitution, the Act and any other laws.	Yes/No	
10.	List of party branch offices, including lease agreements and locations.		

No. Infor	mation	Remarks Yes/No	Reference/Page No.	
	documents presented to the Council including membership register, mergers, coalitions and other reports to the registrar; the accounts of the party; the annual report of the party; the financial reports of the party; any report or document of the party required under this Act or any other written law;			

This CHECKLIST may be submitted with an application for registration.

- A. Completed, correctly and clear answers given against each requirement. If any required information has not been furnished or is wrongly furnished with the application, it may not be possible to consider the application.
- B. All pages of the application including annexes MUST be numbered. The relevant page number of the application must be entered on the fourth column of the checklist.

# DECLARATION IN SUPPORT OF AN APPLICATION FOR PROVISIONAL REGISTRATION OF A POLITICAL PARTY

We, the founding members, whose signatures are subscribed hereto, do hereby solemnly declare as follows:

1. That the constitution or policy of our party –
(a) does not advocate or further the interests of –
(i) any religious belief or group; or
(ii) only a particular area within South Sudan.
(b) does not accept or advocate the use of force or violence as a means of attaining its political objectives.
(c) does not advocate or aim to carry on its political objectives exclusively in one part of South Sudan.
2. That the party will carry out periodic and democratic elections of its leadership as provided in the constitution submitted with the application for provisional registration.
3. That the party undertakes to at all times abide by the provisions of the Constitution and the Political Parties Act, 2012.
This declaration is made to the best of our knowledge, information and belief.
Made this
Names and signatures of three founding members
1. Name
Signature
ID/Passport No.
2. Name

ID/Passport No.
3. Name
ID/Passport No.
In the presence of a
Commissioner of Oaths/Magistrate
FORM P.4 (r. 11(4); (5))
Serial No
CERTIFICATE OF PROVISIONAL REGISTRATION OF A POLITICAL PARTY
I hereby certify that
Dated this
This certificate is valid for one hundred and eighty days from the date of issue.

of

registration

# APPLICATION FOR FULL REGISTRATION OF A POLITICAL PARTY

for

full

made

hereby

is

Regulations.

(i)

Application

		(Name of
th	e par	ty) as a political party under the Political Parties Act, 2012.
1.		e political party has been provisionally registered under Certificate of Provisional egistration Nowhich is annexed hereto, marked "A".
2.	The	Head Office of the Party is situated at
3.	The	contact address of the party is
4.	The	e party has fulfilled all the conditions as regards:
	(a)	Obtaining not less than five hundred eligible voters from at least two-thirds of the states and administrative Areas;, which figures are indicated in Form 6 as attached.
	(b)	Ensuring the members reflect regional and ethnic diversity, gender balance and representation of minorities and marginalised groups;
	(c)	Ensuring the composition of its governing body reflects regional and ethnic diversity, gender balance and representation of minorities and marginalised groups;
	(d)	Ensuring that not more than two-thirds of the members of its governing body being of the same gender;
	(e)	Having demonstrated that members of its governing body meet the requirements of the Constitution and the laws relating to ethics;
	(f)	The location of its head office, which shall be a registered office within South Sudan and a postal address to which notices and other communication may be sent, as stated in Form 2 which is annexed hereto;
	(g)	The location and addresses of the branch offices of the political party, which shall be in two-thirds of the states and administrative areas, as stated in Form 2 which is annexed hereto;

(h) It has undertaken to be bound by this Act and the Code of Conduct set out in these

The nomination and disposition of the party leadership, as stated in Form 2

# which is annexed hereto; and

	(j) We annex hereto:  Two true copies of the constitution and rules of the party; List of names of its political leaders Copy of the approved list of founders Approved copy of minutes of founding meeting Declaration is support of an application for full registration Others(specify)
Da	ted this
Na	mes and signatures of three officials:
1.	Name
	Signature
	ID/Passport No.
2.	Name
	Signature
	ID/Passport No.
3.	Name
	Signature
	ID/Passport No.
In	the presence of:

Commissioner of Oaths/Magistrate

# REGISTER OF MEMBERS OF THE POLITICAL PARTY

Name of Political	Party

Serial No	Name	Date of Birth	Gender	Nationality	Special Interest Group	State	Signature	Date of Membership	Address Telephone
					(tick √)				
									_

Da	ted this
Na	mes and signatures of three officials:
1.	Name
	Signature
	ID/Passport No.
2.	Name
	Signature
	ID/Passport No.
3.	Name
	Signature
	ID/Passport No.

# DECLARATION IN SUPPORT OF AN APPLICATION FOR FULL REGISTRATION OF A POLITICAL PARTY

Name of Political Party....

We, the political l follows—	eaders whose signatures are subscribed hereto do hereby solemnly declare as
	party in respect of which we seek full registration has been provisionally provisional registration is subsisting.
2. The names of of	fice holders of the party are hereto submitted.
- •	ecruited as members, not less than five hundred eligible voters from at least rates and administrative Areas and the details captured in Form 6.
	its head office, which shall be a registered office within South Sudan and party he political partywhich shall be in more than half of the states as indicated in
5. That the party-	
a)	Observes democratic principles in its political activities and respects peaceful transfer of power.
b)	Does not support establishment of covert military formation or cells within the party itself, armed forces or establishment of any paramilitary force.
c)	Is not a branch of any political party outside South Sudan; and
d)	Adheres to the Constitution and laws relating to ethics.

This declaration is made to the best of our knowledge, information and belief.
Dated this
Names and signatures of three officials:
Name
Signature
ID/Passport No.
Name
Signature
ID/Passport No.
Name
Signature
ID/Passport No.

# PARTICULARS OF MEMBERS OF GOVERNING BODY OF THE POLITICAL PARTY

Name	Gend er	Minorities/ Marginalized (tick $\sqrt{}$ )	State	Address/ Telephone	Designation/ Position Held	Date of Appointment/ Election

Th	is declaration is made to the best of our knowledge, information and belief.
Da	ated this
Na	ames and signatures of three officials:
1.	Name
	Signature

	ID/Passport No
2.	Name
	Signature
	ID/Passport No.
3.	Name
	Signature
	ID/Passport No.

Serial No	
CERTIFICATE OF	F FULL REGISTRATION OF A POLITICAL PARTY
has this day been fully registe	red as a political party under the Political Parties Act, 2012day of20
CHAIRPERSON POLITICAL Official Seal	

# PARTY MEMBERSHIP VERIFICATION FORM

Name of State
Name of Member
Nationality
Age
Sex
Occupation
Profession
Religion
Residence ( Constituency)
Postal Address/ Telephone No
Name of State
Name of County
Name of Payam
Name of Boma
Chieftaincy
Party Membership Card No
Issued (date) at (place)
ID/Passport No
I the undersigned do hereby affirm/declare/confirm/verify that I am not a registered member of any other registered political party in Republic of South Sudan.
Signature of Member
Name and Signature of Recruiting person

\*Note: These particulars must be given in respect of at least 500 party members in at least two-thirds of the States and Administrative areas and verified by the County Commissioner or whoever he/she would be deputized.

# PARTICULARS OF POLITICAL PARTY MEMBERSHIP CARD

MEMBERSHIP CARD	MEMBERSHIP CARD FOLIO
<ol> <li>Party name</li> <li>Party logo</li> <li>Membership card number</li> <li>Name of the member</li> <li>ID/passport number of the member</li> <li>Date of issue</li> <li>Place of issue</li> <li>The signature of the member</li> <li>The signature of the recruiter</li> </ol>	<ol> <li>Party name</li> <li>Party logo</li> <li>Membership card number</li> <li>Name of the member</li> <li>ID/passport number of the member</li> <li>Date of issue</li> <li>Place of issue</li> <li>The signature of the member</li> <li>The signature of the recruiter</li> </ol>

# LOCATION AND ADDRESS OF PARTY HEAD OFFICE AND COUNTY BRANCH OFFICES

The locati	on of the head office of the	he political party	
is			
		is P.O. Box or/and Telephone N (Add building, L.R No., stree	
•••••	•••••	(Add building, L.K No., Siled	et, road of flearest location)
The locati	on and address of party b	ranch offices which shall be in t	two-thirds of the states and
administra	ative Areas are as follows	:	
S/No.	State	Location	Address/Telephone No.
1			
2			
3			
4			
5			
6			
7			
8			
9			
10			
1		1	1

11

## (Add where the counties have exceeded the rows)

This declaration is made to the best of our knowledge, information and belief. Dated this
Names and signatures of three officials:
Name
Signature
ID/Passport No.
Name
Signature
ID/Passport No.
Name
Signature
ID/Passport No.

## NOTICE OF CHANGE OF OFFICE-BEARERS OF A POLITICAL PARTY

1. 2. The following persons  Full name  1. 2.		inted/elected office-beard	ers of the party  Date of Appointment/ Election to Office	
re following persons Full name			Date of Appointment/	
Full name			Date of Appointment/	
1.	De	signation		
2.				
3.				
ed this		20		
ne				
nature				
Passport No				
ne				
ature				

Nar	ne			
Sig	nature			
ID/	Passport No			
				FORM P.14 (r. 17(2))
NC	OTICE OF CHA	NGE OF LOCATION	OF HEAD OFFICE	OF A POLITICAL PARTY
		en that the location of the work to	vas on the	olitical party known as day of20 changed
Dat	ed this	day of	20	
Sig	ned by authorized	l party officials:		
	Full name	Designation	Signature	ID/Passport No.
	1.			
	2.			
	3.			

#### NOTICE OF CHANGE OF NAME OF A POLITICAL PARTY

-	ade for an intention to c		political party known as
Dated this		. day of	20
Full name	Designation	Signature	ID/Passport No.
1.			
2.			
3.			
We annex minutes Stamp/Seal of Para	s with resolution for cha	ange of name.	FORM P.16 (r.19(1))
			OF A POLITICAL PARTY
Notice is hereby g	iven that the political pa	irty known as	
٥	nstitution/Rules in the f		is to say:
Dated this	day of		20

# FORM P.17 (r. 21(4))

#### REGISTER OF PARTICULARS OF POLITICAL PARTIES

FOL	FOLIO No								
B. Po C. L	A. Name of Political Party File No								
	Date of receipt of application for provisional registration	Date when application refused or granted (delete as applicable)	Certificate Seria (Form 4)	al No.	Date of	fissue			
E. Pa	Particulars of Full Registration of Political Party:  Certificate of full registration serial No(Form Date of issue cancellation								
	_	stration serial No	(Form		of				
F. Cl	_		(Form		of				
	9) nange of name of Politi		`	issue	of				
(i) N	nange of name of Polities	ical Party:		issue	of				
(i) N (ii) I	anange of name of Polities  we name	ical Party:		issue	of 				
(i) N (ii) I (iii) '	nange of name of Polities  we name  Date of change of name  Change of Constitution	ical Party:		issue		cancellation			

**Chairperson Political Parties Council** 

## ANNUAL RETURNS OF POLITICAL PARTIES

			POL	
as	_		party leaders of the politic	
do hereby submit h	nerewith a copy of	f the audited state	ment of accounts for the y	ear stated above
Dated this		day of	20	
Name	Designation	ID/Passport No.	Signature	
	Designation	ib/i assport ive.		
2				
				Stamp of Party
				FORM P.19 (r. 25(1))
NOT	TIFICATION OF	F SUSPENSION	OF A POLITICAL PAR	RTY
То	•••••			•••••
I hereby give you r Political Parties Ac	notice that, in execut, 2012, I have th	rcise of the power is day suspended	s conferred upon me by se the political party known	ection 32 of the
on the ground that				•••••
	• • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •			
		da	y of 20	
CHAIRPERSON F Official Stam		TIES COUNCIL		

## NOTIFICATION OF INTENTION TO DE-REGISTER A POLITICAL PARTY

To
I hereby give you notice that, in exercise of the powers conferred upon me by section 32 of the Political Parties Act, 2012, the Council intends to deregistered the political party known as after ninety days
from the date hereof unless the political party remedies the breach or contravention or otherwise show cause why the party should not be deregistered.
on the ground that
Dated this day of 20
CHAIRPERSON POLITICAL PARTIES COUNCIL Official Stamp

#### APPLICATION FORFORMATION OF MERGER OF POLITICAL PARTIES

1.	Name of the new political party:								
2.	Abbreviation/acronym of the new political party:								
3.	The emblem, logo, symbol and party colours of the party:								
4.	Names of all cons	tituent politicalparties (	(parties merging):						
			•••••						
5.	Address and locat	ion of the new political	party head office:						
6.	Political Leaders	of the new political par	ty:						
Vai	me	Designation in Party	ID/Passport No.	Signature					

- 7. We have submitted together with this form:
  - (a) Merger agreement including terms and conditions of the merger;
  - (b) Certified copies of the resolution adopted by the executive committee of each political party consenting to the merger;
  - (c) Signed minutes of the meetings of all the political parties to the agreement sanctioning the merger.

It is hereby	declared	that the con	tents of this	declaration	togetner v	vith all ti	ne attachmen	ts are true
and correct	t <b>.</b>							
Dated this.		day of		20				

#### **DEPOSIT OF MERGER AGREEMENT**

1. The constituent parties of the merger will dissolve and form a new political party to be

2.	The abbreviation/acronym of the new party (if any):								
3.	3. The logo, symbol and party colours of the new party:								
4. (	Contact information:								
á.	a. Contact person (s)								
1	o. Contact address (es)								
(	c. Contact email (s)								
(	d. Contact phone number (s)								
(	e. Location of the new party head office:								
5. 1	Documents which must be deposited together with this form:								
i	. The merger agreement								
i	i. Copy of the rules for merger of each of the constituent political parties; and								
i	ii. Certified copies of the resolution adopted by the relevant governing body of each political party consenting to the pre-election coalition								
It is here and corr	eby declared that the contents of this declaration together with all the attachments are true ect.								
Dated th	is								
Signed l	by the authorized party officials of each of the constituent political parties.								
•••••									

## **DEPOSIT OF MERGER AGREEMENT**

1.	Th	e constituent parties of the merger:
	• • • •	
	• • • •	
	• • • •	
	• • • •	
2.	Th	e constituent parties of the merger have agreed to merge by integration.
	a)	The integrating party is:
	b)	The integrated party/ies is/are:
3.	Co	ntact information:
	f)	Contact person (s)
	g)	Contact address (es)
	h)	Contact email (s)
	i)	Contact phone number (s)
	c)	Location of the new party head office:
	•••	
4.	Do	ocuments which must be deposited together with this form:
	iv.	The merger agreement
	v.	Copy of the rules for merger of each of the constituent political parties; and
	vi.	Certified copies of the resolution adopted by the relevant governing body of each political party consenting to the pre-election coalition

It is hereby declared that and correct.	at the contents of this dec	laration together with al	l the attachments are true				
Dated this	day of	20.					
Signed by the authorize	d party officials of each	of the constituent politic	al parties.				
			•••				
			FORM P.23				
FORMA	ATION OF A COALIT	ION OF POLITICAL I	(r. 33) PARTIES				
1. Name of the	coalition:						
2. Abbreviation	n/acronym of the name o	f coalition:					
3. Names of all	l constituent political par	ties:					
4. Address and	location of the coalition	head office (include em	ail address):				
5. Political Leaders of the coalition:							
Name	Designation in Par	rty ID/Passport No.	Signature				

- 6. Documents which must be submitted together with this form:
  - (a) Coalition agreement including terms and conditions of the coalition; and
  - (b) Certified copies of the resolution adopted by the executive committee of each political party consenting to the coalition.

It is hereby declared that the contents of this declaration together with all the attachments are true and correct.

Dated	this20
Signed	by the authorised party officials of each of the constituent political parties.
•••••	
	FORM P. 24 (r. 34)
	DEPOSIT OF PRE-ELECTION COALITION AGREEMENT.
1.	The constituent parties of the pre-election coalition are:
2.	For the purpose of popularizing the pre-election coalition, the pre-election coalition will informally be using the name:
3.	For the purpose of popularizing the pre-election coalition, the pre-election coalition will informally be using the abbreviation/acronym (if any):
4.	Contact information:
	i) Contact person (s)

	k)	Contact address (es)
	1)	Contact email (s)
	m)	Contact phone number (s)
5.	Do	cuments which must be deposited together with this form:
	g)	The coalition agreement
	h)	Copy of the rules for consenting to pre-election coalition of each of the constituent political parties; and
	i)	Certified copies of the resolution adopted by the relevant governing body of each political party consenting to the pre-election coalition
It is he		y declared that the contents of this declaration together with all the attachments are true t.
		the authorized party officials of each of the constituent political parties.
•••••		
		FORM P.25 (r. 35) DEPOSIT OF POST-ELECTION COALITION AGREEMENT.
1.	The	e constituent parties of the post-election coalition are:

	••••	
2.	Th	e post-election coalition is for the purpose of providing governance
	0	at national level
	0	at county level, the county being:(choose as relevant)
8.	Co	ntact information:
	n)	Contact person (s)
	o)	Contact address (es)
	p)	Contact email (s)
	q)	Contact phone number (s)
9.	Do	cuments which must be deposited together with this form:
	j)	The coalition agreement
	k)	Copy of the rules for consenting to post-election coalition of each of the constituent political parties; and
	1)	Certified copies of the resolution adopted by the relevant governing body of each political party consenting to the post-election coalition
It is he and co	-	y declared that the contents of this declaration together with all the attachments are true t.
Dated	this	day of
Signed	l by	the authorized party officials of each of the constituent political parties.

#### SECOND SCHEDULE

**FEES** 

(r.	11)

No.	Subject Matter	Amount (USD)
1	Application for Provisional Registration  i. Name and symbol search (20,000)  ii. Perusal of information to accompany application for provisions registration (15,000)  iii. Verification of application (3,000)  iv. Provisional enrolment (2,000)  v. Certificate of provisional registration (10,000)	50,000
2	Application for Full Registration  i. Confirmation of requirements for full registration (8,000)  ii. Perusal of information to accompany application for full registration (2,000)  iii. Verification of application and proof of compliance (5,000)  iv. Certificate of full registration (10,000)	25,000
3	Verification Reviewable Fee  i. Perusal of documents (1,500)  ii. Verification (1,000)  iii. Certification (500)	3,000
4	Application for Official Search  i. Filing application (500)  ii. Inspection and perusal (2,000)	2,500
5	Application for a Copy of any Certificate or Filed  Document  i. Filing application (3,000)  ii. File perusal (500)  iii. Extraction of copy/ies (1,500)	5,000

6	Application for Certified Extract of Register of Political Parties  i. Filing application (5,000)  ii. Processing (3,000)  iii. Extraction of Copy (2,000)	10,000
7	Complaints Fee  i. Filing of complaint (4,000)  ii. Affidavit and Service (2,000)  iii. Submissions (500)  iv. Orders/Judgement (1,000)	7,500
8	Objection Fee  i. Filing of Objection (15,000)  ii. Affidavit (2,000)  iii. Summons (5,000)  iv. Decree (3,000)	25,000

Note: Payable in SSP at the applicable USD rate on date of payment

Issue under my hand on	this day of	2024.
Ноп		

Chairperson of the Political Parties Council Republic of South Sudan Juba.